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COMPLAINT CONCERNING VIOLATION OF "FECA"

TO: The Commission and General Counsel

l. This complaint is directed at the National Broadcasting Company,

the Gannett Company, and the Public Broadcasting Service, NYSE Foundation,
Inc.and all other organizations which have sponsored presidential
candidate debates for the 1988 presidential election.

2. Applicable Commission Rules. This complaint is filed pursuant to
the Federal Election Campaign Act ("FECA") and specifically 11 CFR
§110.13. In §110.13, the Commission has established ground rules
for exempting candidate debates from contribution limits and other
legal restrictions. The Commission's rules appear to require that
"'such debates are nonpartisan in that they do not promote or
advance one candidate over another."
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3. According to the Commission's records, approximately sixteen (16)
candidates have met the Commission's standards for presidential
candidate status, i.e. they have satisfied the Commission's
requirements as candidates who have expended or received funds

in the requisite amount under the FECA.
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4. Attached hereto is an advertizement from the New York Times,
noting that a debate will promote only twelve of the more than
twelve qualified candidates. It is obvious that a ''debate'" that
includes less than all qualified candidates ''promotes'" and "advances'
the candidacies of those who are included in the TV programs and
acts to the detriment of those who are excluded. By giving free
exposure to some candidates, but not all qualified candidates,

the NBC Company can hardly be said to be acting in a nonpartisan
spirit; it is obviously partisan towards some campaigns/candidates,
and, on the other hand, partisan against other campaigns/candidates.
In addition, NBC has solicited and received corporate sonsorship for
the debates. A program which includes some, but not all, qualified
candidates cannot by any reasoned definition do anything but advance
or promote the favored few to the detriment of those who are excluded.
On information and belief, there do not appear to be any standards
governing whose candidacies may be favored or promoted and whose
candidacies are not to be favored or promoted by free TV exposure.
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The Gannett Compangl!as scheduled a '"debate'" for Republican/Democratic
candidates at the Des Moines Register, in Des Moines, Iowa. It appears
that some, but not all, FEC-qualified candidates will be invited to appear.

5. The complainant is a nonpartisan voter. He has not endosed any
candidate. He has not contributed to any candidate. He wishes to
know who all of the candidates are and he wants to see all of the
candidates debate the issues, not just some of the candidates.

6. The Public Broadcasting Service has sponsored similar debates,
which included some candidates and excluded some candidates. The
Service ("PBS") is obviously taxpayer supported and tax exempt.
By what means can it promote and advance the campaigns of some
candidates, who are given television exposure, to the detriment
of other candidates who are denied equal exposure.

7. Throughout American political history, minority candidates and
minority movements have played a pivotal role in American political
development. By allowing the PBS, or NBC, or the Gannett Company,
to use their funds to offer de facto endorsements of candidates who
are deemed worthy, by some unspecified standards, to receive

free TV exposure, these companies or organizations are allowed

to control and determine who can effectively become a candidate

for the presidency. Anyone who is excluded from the circle of
favored few, is automatically placed at an extreme and insuperable
disadvantage, by being excluded from nationwide media functions.
The cost of purchasing a New York Times Newspaper advertizement

is significant; yet NBC has placed an ad which cannot help but
adbance and promote the campaigns of the candidates it has advertized
vis a vis those whose pictures have been excluded.

8. Likewise, the New York Stock Exchange foundation has placed
newspaper ads with the pictures of some candidates, though apparently
not all candidates. Obviously, a candidate whose receives a free
picture in a commercial advertizement is favored vis a vis a candidate
who is not given a free picture in the nation's leading newspaper.

A copy of one such ad is attached hereto. To allow tax exempt
foundations to advertize candidates and place their pictures in
general circulation newspapers violates the law.

9. It would appear that the failure of the Commission to initiate any
actions has allowed the use of tax exempt and corporate funds to be

used in a manner never contemplated by the authors of the FECA. The

NYSE Foundation, Inc. ads arz obviously beneficial to candidates

whose campaigns are "promoted'" by free ads, and a candidate who gets

a free ad is '"advanced'" vis a vis candidates who do not receive free ads.
All of the foregoing debates, corporate and foundation and taxpayer
sponsored '"'interviews'" and ''debates'" viplate the letter and spirit of

the FECA. il F
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ADWARD S. KANBAR
4 E. 77 Street
2 New York, NY 10021
STATE ¢ Now Yedio iy
C CUNTY CF Niuiv Youk ' NOTARIZATION

I hereby certify that Edward Kanbar appeared persoanlly before
me and after being sworn stated that he execu%ig %p? foregg}ng as 9{
a tr t statement of law and fact, Tk l . lUrmeln
ue and correc emen a 7 ‘///4&7 Z o/ ¥
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Date: I)/V'/f7 Notary Public: <+« _/M'C«KAA;7
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This week, Marvin Kaib will host an in-depth conversation e .
with Pete du Pont, Republican candidate for President. This oftram being
60-minute program will air on your local PBS station.

Pete du Pont wili have the opportunity to share his views ona |
number of topics and respond to questions from a live audience. simply not re:

Candidates ‘88 tvith Marvin Kalb is made possible by a grant sy
from The New York Stock Exchange Foundation, Inc. as a public Tomerslo

educational service.

\NYSE Foundation, Inc. - Anoth
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This series is a co-production of WGBH Boston. the Joan Shorenstein Barone Center on the Press, Politics and Public TY(:-:S'CY

Policy, the Institute of Pohms and the John F Kennedy School of Government at Harvard University. similaritie
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LS contend for their party nominations on the same stage.

; j ! /‘ '1\ M oderator Tom Brokawy

onight's

' € o)\z‘,

. A
[~ 33

e 3
Py
b

9-11 TONIGHT NBC NEWS 4

% % X 0% X 2 0 2 2 O X 2 O X 2 0 X % 3 % % b b o X % X 0 % X 2 O b O % % b % % % % % % % %+ %
|




070 3

R 39 4

45 k1
42 45

. @ Nov. 20-24 of which 552
1y and caucus voters and 417

v

{

yut Democratic Field Stil

is a considerable improvement ove:
his standing last May, when he w
viewed favorably by only 23 perce
and unfavorably by 38 percent.

T My

bad idea *‘to put limits on i of
ign * 68 percent of Amer-
ns thought it was a good idea. Virty

Mr. Jackson has tried to expand be [ally the same proportion of Americans
yond his base in the black community|70 percent, thought that in June 1983
by portraying himself as the champior [long before ‘:::xme contemplated s

of the average worker, white or black |crash in the s

market.

Commercial Sponsors Will Claim

Equal Time in Presidential Debate

By WARREN WEAVER Jr.
Special i The New York Times

WASHINGTON, Nov. 30 — Each of
the 12 Presidential candidates in Tues-
day night’s televised debate from the
Kennedy Center will probably have
about the same amount of time as each
of the three sponsors’ commercials in
the two-hour program.

According to ground rules set by
NBC News, which is staging the debate,
the six Democrats and six Republicans
will have one minute each to respond to
questions posed by the moderator, Tom
Brokaw, in each one-hour segment of
the show. Each of them will also ad-
dress a question to one rival in the
same party in that hour, eliciting a one-
minute answer.

The first section, starting at 9 P.M.
Eastern standard time, will be devoted
to foreign policy, with the Democrats
appearing for the first 30 minutes and
the Republicans for the second 30-
minute segment. The second hour is to
deal with domestic affairs, with the
parties appearing in the same order,
based on an earlier toss of the coin.

3-Question Allotment

An NBC spokesman said that, after
commercials, there will be about 25
minutes of air time for debate in each
half-hour. Under the one-minute it
for answers, assuming rea lly
that each uses his full allotment, Mr.
Brokaw will have time for anly three
questions to each panelist, followed by
one question by each candidate to an-
other, or a total of four minutes before
the camera for each on foreign policy
and four more on domestic issues.

Although the network was unable to
provide precise figures for advertising
time, it estimated that the total would
be five or six minutes for each half-
hour, or 20 to 24 minutes for the full
program. Thus sponsors of the pro-
gram—the Ford Motor Company, the
Travellers Corporation and Wang

¢
Laboratories Inc.—will get seven or
eight minutes each.

The League of Women Voters, which
is sponsoring Presidential debates this
year as in past, officially opposes
cmsenung commercials during debate

roadcasts. Janice Kaplan, director of
public affairs for the league, said the
organization feit such ldvem “in-
terrupts the flow of the debate.”” The
league, a nonprofit group, accepts con-
tributions from corporations to help fi-
nance {ts debates.

Television networks have been spon-
soring Presidential campaign debates
periodically since 1856 when ABC
News broadcast a confrontation be-
tween Adlai E. Stevenson and Senator
Estes Kefauver from Miami in the
preconvention competition. In 1960, the
televised debates between Vice Pred)-
dent Nixon, a Republican, and Senator
John F. K , Democrat of Massa-
chusetts, were sponsored jointly, by
NBC,CBS and ABC, ‘

Each of the Democratic and Republi-
can candidates has drawn the name of
a rival of the same party to whom his
question will be addressed. This assign-
ment system will prevent several can-
didates who rank lower in the polis
from joining forces to ask a single
front-runner a series of questions.

Panelists for the Democrats are for-
mer Gov. Bruce Babbitt of Arizona,
Gov. Michael S. Dukakis of Massachu-
setis, Representative Richard A. Gep-
hardt of Missouri, Senator Albert Gore
Jr. of Tennessee, the Rev. Jesse L.
Jackson and Senator Paul Simon of I1li-
nois. ¢
Republican panelists scheduled are
Vice President Bush, Senator Bob Dole
of Kansas, former Gov. Pete du Pont of
Delaware, Alexander M. Haig Jr., Rep-
resentative Jack Kemp of upstate New
York, and Pat Robertson.

| Lacks Fire

But 37 percent say they would be
’illing to pay more in taxes (o cut the
eficit. New York Times/CBS News
irveys, using a slightly different ques-

found substantially less support
‘X increase in both January 1984
nary 1985. The shift may re-
~tensive attention given the
‘dget negotiations that

1 v market's plunge.

°t a majority of

*50,000 a year.

rere will-

within their own party. And neither is
yet broadly known or broadly lar.

Underlining the Democratic icul
ties is the fact that Senator Bob Dole of
Kansas, a Republican Presidential
candidate, had a better rating among
Democratic primary voters — 29 per-
cent favorable, 15 percent unfavorable
— than any of the party’s own candi-
dates.

The Rev. Jesse Jackson leads among
registered Democratic primary voters
with 25 percent, up from 17 percent last
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On the Republican side, the bad news
for the Reagan Administration has so
far left Vice President Bush largely un-
scathed. ik

Mr. Bush has slightly ex] his
nationwide lead over Mr. This
month, Mr. Bush led Mr. Dole, 48 per-
cent to 20 percent; last month, Mr.
Bush was ahead of Mr. Dole by 43 per-
cent u;l 2tzhe pe:tcheem.kln thbel current sur-
vey, & r Republicans lagged
far behind: Pat Robertson had 7 per-
cent, Representative Jack F. Kemp of
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463 :
January 11, 1988
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If you have any questions, ei=sse ZoSntact
tne staff mamber assigned to this matter, at (J0WL) T75-TeF0.
yaur information, we have attached a brief dsscrmaction 2t tne
ftommiesion '& procedures tor hardlinz comslaints.
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FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20463,
January 11, 1988

e [ U)o
3 e M [N
- ‘"‘ -
rn n
e Sy )
J mc

5
i

i
L e

ST R e

S DELT
2w Yopk Stock
Foungaticn, I

eceived a complai
ge Fourndaticn,.
B a1gn RAct of

]
0
2
o5

o
L

“4 et 0N ae
L

(]

iecticn

law Yo=is
“eoceral

b |

TTEr

ond=

L]
Wl :
0t
Bl

(4]
a

i)

1
& is encl

-

(TS
T
n -
!

0 0

0
~
(o
™
o
~
o
-
(e
o

83




»

If you have any questicns, slsass contact Michae! Marinslli,
the staff.member assigrned to this matter, at (202Z) I7&-3520. Faop
vour information, we nave attached a bprie+ descrimticn of the
Commissicn's procedures for handling comelaints.

Sincersly,

Lawrence M.
Genzsral

Enclosures
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F‘EbmAL ELECTION COMMISSION

WASHINCTON, D.C. 20463
' January 11, 1988
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If you have any suestions, please contact Michasl Marimelly,
the staff member assianed to this matte-, &t (202 I76-Z&%50. Foe
vauar information, we have attached a brief description of the

: crpcedures for handling complaints.

Sincersly,

emce M. Moole
31 Counzel
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January 27, 1988

Charles Steele, Esq.
General Counsel

Federal Election Commission
Washington, D.C. 20463

Re: MUR 2567

¢IHd QENYr g8

Dear Mr. Steele:

0l

This letter responds to the January 11, 1988 letter from
Lois G. Lerner concerning a complaint by Edward S. Kanbar
concerning the Des Moines Register’'s sponsorship of a
presidential candidate debate for the 1988 presidential election.
There is no basis for the Federal Election Commission taking any
action against Gannett with regard to this matter.

The regulation cited by Mr. Kanbar contradicts the argument
he makes. The crux of his complaint against Gannett appears to
be that the Des Moines Register (owned by Gannett) sponsored a
debate of Republican and Democratic presidential candidates at
which "some, but not all” candidates qualifying for federal
matching funds appeared. (Complaint, 1 4). He extrapolates from
this the contention that the failure to have all similarly
qualifying candidates participate violates the requirement that
debates be "non-partisan" within the meaning of Section 110.13 of
the Commission’s regulations. (Complaint, 1 4).

Mr. Kanbar has provided only a selective quotation from the
controlling regulation. (Complaint, 1 2). Section 110.13(a)(2)
authorizes newspapers like the Register to stage debates that
comply with subsection (b). Subsection (b) expressly states:
"The structure of debates staged in accordance with
11 C.F.R. 110.13 . . . is left to the discretion of the staging

organization. "

The Commission’s rules place only two limits on the
discretion of the Register in staging the debate that is the
subject of the complaint.

First, the debate must "include at least two candidates."
11 C.F.R. § 110.13(b) (emphasis added). In fact, 13 candidates
appeared from both parties in the Register s debate. Indeed, the
Commission s use of "at least" in the regulation appears to
contemplate a situation where there are multiple candidates and
only requires two to be present.

1100 Wilson Bivd. Arlington, VA 22209 703/284-6000 Mailing address: P.0.Box 7858, Washington, DC 20044




Charles Steele, Esq.
January 27, 1988
Page Two

Second, the debate must be "non-partisan in that [it] not
promote or advance one candidate over another”, the language
quoted by the complainant. 11 C.F.R. § 110.13(b). Given the
first restriction, this can only refer to how the debate itself
is conducted with regard to the actual participants. That is,
the Register can have a debate with 13 candidates so long as no
one candidate who participates is promoted over the others. Here
Mr. Kanbar does not fault in any way the manner in which the
Register staged its debate with respect to the participants. He
only contends that unspecified non-participants should have been
included, a position inconsistent with the law and with the
Commirgion's regulations.

Accordingly, Gannett requests that the Commission find no

reason to believe that any provision of the Federal Election
Campaign Act or the Commission s rules has been violated.

Please direct any questions to the undersigned.
Sincerely yours,

Alice Neéff Lucan
Assistant General Counsel

Charles C. Edwards, Jr.
Publisher, The Des Moines Register

James P. Gannon
Editor, The Des Moines Register
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STATEMENT OF DQP!GIATIOU OoFr_COUMSEL

MUR 2657

NAME OF COUMSEL: Alice Neff Lucan
ADDRESS : Assistant General Counsel

Law Department

Gannett Co. Inc.

1100 Wilson Blvd. Arlington, Virginia 22209
(703)284-6944

The above-named individual is hereby designated as my
counsel and is authorized to receive any notifications and other
communications from the Commission and to act on my behalf before

the Commission.

[ a2 Jss . @&QAALQL&L
Date’ / gnature

Douglas H. McCorkindale

RESPONDENT'S NAME:

Vice Chairman/Chief Financial
ADDRESS : ini i i

Gannett Co. Inc.
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1100 Wilson Blvd.

HOME PHONE: Arlington, Virginia 22209
BUSINESS PHONE: (703)284-6901
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February 1, 1988
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Mr. Lawrence M. Noble
General Counsel

Federal Election Commission
Washington, D.C. 20463
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MUR 2567

Public Broadcasting Service
Dear Mr. Noble:

358009
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This letter responds to the above-referenced complaint
that Edward S. Kanbar has filed against the Public
Broadcasting Service ("PBS") and others.

Mr. Kanbar’s complaint is premised on the notion that if
a candidate debate includes some candidates and excludes

others, it necessarily promotes or advances one candidate over
another in violation of the Federal Election Campaign Act of
1971, as amended, 2 U.S.C. Section 431 et seq. (the "Act").
In particular, Mr. Kanbar alleges that such debates are not
entitled to the exemption for nonpartisan candidate debates
provided in Section 110.13 of the Federal Election

Commission’s ("FEC") rules, 11 C.F.R. Section 110.13.
interpretation of the FEC’s rules is incorrect.

This
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There is nothing in the FEC rules to suggest that a
debate must include all legally qualified candidates to be
deemed "nonpartisan." On the contrary, Section 110.13(b)
specifically provides that

"[t]lhe structure of debates staged in accordance
with 11 CFR 110.13 and 114.4(e) is left to the
discretion of the staging organization, provided
that (1) such debates include at least two
candidates, and (2) such debates are nonpartisan
in that they do not promote or advance one
candidate over another."
110.13(b) .

11 C.F.R. Section
In accordance with this rule, a staging organization has
broad discretion to structure a candidate debate as it
chooses, subject to only two requirements. The first
requirement is that "at least two candidates" be invited to
participate in the debate.

Thus, the rule does not require
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Lawrence M. Noble
February 1, 1988
Page 2 of 5 Pages

that all legally qualified candidates be included in a debate;
on the contrary, it explicitly provides that two candidates is
sufficient to satisfy its minimum requirements.

The second requirement is that the debate be
"nonpartisan.” The Explanation and Justification for adopting
Section 110.13(b) makes it clear that this requirement is
directed at the manner in which the debate participants are
selected and treated:

"(s]Juch debates must, however, be nonpartisan in
nature and they must provide fair and impartial
treatment of candidates. The primary question
in determining nonpartisanship is the selection
of candidates to participate in such debates."
44 Fed. Reg. 76,735 (1979).

Thus, it was anticipated that candidates would be "selected"
for participation in the debates, i.e. that not all of the
legally qualified candidates would be included. As long as
fair and impartial selection criteria are used, this selection
process does not deprive a debate of its nonpartisan status;
nor does it mean that the debate "promote([s] or advance([s] one
candidate over another" in an impermissible manner.

This interpretation is consistent with the Commission’s
determination regarding a similar complaint filed by Stephen
A. Koczak (MUR 1617) during the last Presidential election
campaign. Mr. Koczak alleged that he was a Democratic
candidate for President and that failure to include him in a
Democratic candidate debate, sponsored by Dartmouth College
and distributed by PBS, violated the FEC regulation requiring
that candidate debates be "nonpartisan in that they do not
promote or advance one candidate over another.” 11 C.F.R.
Section 110.13(b) (2) . The General Counsel’s Report in that
matter concluded that Mr. Koczak’s exclusion did not violate
Section 110.13(b). In reaching this conclusion, the General
Counsel reviewed the criteria that Dartmouth had employed in
selecting candidates to participate in the debate and found
that those criteria were

"fair and impartial and were aimed at selecting
those individuals who had significant candidacies.
Mr. Koczak’s candidacy did not meet the standards




Mr. Lawrence M. Noble
February 1, 1988
Page 3 of 5 Pages

when evaluated by Dartmouth. Dartmouth’s
evaluation was reasonable and fair." General
Counsel’s Report at 7.

Mr. Kanbar’s complaint is directed at "organizations
which have sponsored presidential candidate debates for the
1988 presidential election." Complaint at 1. He has included
PBS within this group because he alleges that "[t]he Public
Broadcasting Service has sponsored similar debates
Complaint at 2. However, Mr. Kanbar has mischaracter1zed
PBS’s role with respect to the debates that it has
distributed.

PBS is a nonprofit membership corporation whose members
are licensees of noncommercial educational television stations
throughout the United States and its territories. PBS was
established by public television stations to operate the
distribution facilities that enable its members to share
programming on a national basis. At present, such program
distribution is accomplished via the public television
satellite interconnection system. PBS also assists its member
stations to acquire, schedule, publicize, and promote
programming. However, PBS does not itself produce any
programming and, indeed, is barred from doing so by its
Articles of Incorporation.

The candidate debates that PBS distributes to its member
stations are of two general types. The Dartmouth debate was
an example of the first type of debate: it was conducted and
controlled by a third party, and public television’s role was
limited to providing broadcast coverage of the event. The
FIRING LINE debates are an example of the second type: they
were produced as part of the campaign coverage provided by an
established public affairs/news program that appears regularly
on public television. In both cases, the debates are produced
and controlled by an entity other than PBS, and it is that
entity that is responsible for making the journalistic
judgments involved in selecting the participants and subject
matter.

Mr. Kanbar has not identified any specific debates,
distributed by PBS, that he believes violate the FEC’s rules.
Instead, he rests his allegation that PBS has acted to
"promote and advance the campaigns of some candidates, who are




Mr. Lawrence M. Noble
February 1, 1988
Page 4 of 5 Pages

given television exposure, to the detriment of other
candidates who are denied equal exposure” on the mere fact
that debates distributed by PBS have not necessarily included
all candidates. Complaint at 2. As shown above, Mr. Kanbar
errs in presuming that just because a debate does not include
all candidates, it is not "nonpartisan" within the meaning of
Section 110.13(b). To conclude that a candidate debate was
not "nonpartisan" would require additional evidence of
unfairness, partiality, or partisan purpose on the part of the
staging organization. PBS has no reason to believe that the
organizations that have staged the candidate debates
distributed by PBS have conducted those debates in anything
but a fair, impartial, and nonpartisan manner.

As described above, PBS’s role is that of program
distributor, not program producer. PBS’s distribution of
candidate debates to its member stations falls squarely within
the press exemption of the Act’s reporting requirements and
limitations on expenditures and contributions. The Act
expressly exempts traditional journalistic activities, such as
those PBS engages in, from the definition of "expenditure."
Section 431(9) (B) (i) provides that

"The term ’'expenditure’ does not include --
(i) any news story, commentary, or editorial
distributed through the facilities of any
broadcasting station, newspaper, magazine, or
other periodical publication, unless such
facilities are owned or controlled by any
political party, political committee, or
candidate . . . ." 2 U.S.C. Section

431 (9) (B) (i) .

The regulations implementing the Act incorporate this press
exemption in the definitions of both "contribution" (see 11
C.F.R. Section 100.7(b) (2)) and "expenditure" (see 11 C.F.R.
Section 100.8(b) (2)) .

As the Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
Circuit has recognized,

"The legislative history of this section further
indicates that Congress meant for the [press]
exemption to be a broad one:
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[I]t is not the intent of the Congress in
the present legislation to limit or burden
in any way the first amendment freedoms of
the press and of association. Thus the
exclusion assures the unfettered right of
the . . . media to cover and comment on

political campaigns.
H. Rep. No. 93-943, 93d Cong., 2d Sess. at 4 (1974

(emphasis added)."” FEC v. Phillips Publishin

Inc., 517 F. Supp. 1308, 1312 (D .DE.C'. 1981) .

It is beyond question that candidate debates fall within
the meaning of this exemption. To the extent that those
debates are broadcast through the facilities of PBS and its
member stations, those facilities are neither owned nor
controlled by any political party, political committee, or
candidate. Accordingly, PBS’s role in distributing those
debates can in no way be construed as an impermissible
contribution or expenditure of funds to advance a particular
candidacy. Any other result would severely burden the media’s
right to cover and comment on political campaigns and would
raise serious first amendment issues.

Sincerely,
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Nancy H. Hendry
Deputy General Counsel

Paula A. Jameson
Senior Vice President and
General Counsel

cc: Michael Marinelli
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Dear Mr. Noble:

This is the response of The New York Stock Exchange
Foundation, Inc. ("NYSE Foundation") to the complaint in the
above matter. The complaint alleges that the NYSE Foundation
violated the Federal Election Campaign Act, as amended,

2 U.S.C. § 431 et seq. ("FECA"), by placing newspaper adver-
tisements publicizing television broadcasts of a series of
presidential candidate appearances before audiences at
Harvard University.

h¢:€ Hd 1-83483
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FACTS

The NYSE Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation
organized under the laws of the State of New York. 1Its
general mission is charitable and educational. It provides
funding to non-profit educational and charitable organiza-
tions, such as libraries and schools, that are exempt from
federal taxation under 26 U.S.C. § 501(c)(3).
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On October 30, 1987, the NYSE Foundation entered
into an agreementl/ with the President and Fellows of Harvard
College ("Harvard") and the WGBH Educational Foundation
("WGBH" )2/ concerning the production, broadcast, and promotion
of a series of presidential candidate forums. The idea for

1/, A copy of the agreement is attached hereto.

2/ WGBH is a charitable, non-profit Massachusetts cor-
poration engaged primarily in the business of producing,
distributing and broadcasting educational programs on radio

and television.
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the series originated with Harvard, which approached WGBH
with respect to providing television coverage. Harvard and
WGBH then contacted the NYSE Foundation, which agreed to
provide funding for the broadcasts.

The series, which concluded on January 17, 1988,
consisted of separate, one-hour appearances by twelve presi-
dential candidates before an audience of Harvard students,
faculty members and guests of Harvard in an auditorium at the
John F. Kennedy School of Government at Harvard. The appear-
ances were broadcast on public television stations nationwide.
In each program in the series, the candidate was questioned
by moderator Marvin Kalb and members of the audience.

The agreement between Harvard, WGBH and the NYSE
Foundation provides that Harvard would be solely responsible
for, among other things, determining the number of programs
to be held, selecting a moderator and determining which
candidates would appear, and deciding upon the format of the
programs. WGBH would be responsible for producing the
televised coverage of each appearance in the series and for
arranging broadcast distribution to public television
stations. Under the agreement, all copyright and other
similar rights with respect to the televised versions of the
programs are the property of WGBH, except that Harvard and
the NYSE Foundation are each entitled to one videotape copy
of the series, which may be used for non-profit educational
purposes.

Pursuant to the agreement, the NYSE Foundation pro-
vided funding to Harvard in support of the series. Harvard
remitted a portion of those funds to WGBH to cover the costs
of production and broadcast of the programs. The agreement
provides that any such funds received by WGBH that have not
been spent on production or related costs are to be returned
to Harvard, which is to remit those funds to the NYSE
Foundation.
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The NYSE Foundation received credit as underwriter
on all public television broadcasts of the series, and is
informed that it received such credit in all copies of the
series reproduced or distributed by BHarvard or WGBH, and in
all promotional materials relating to the series. In addi-
tion, the NYSE Foundation itself publicized each broadcast in
the series by placing advertisements in a number of news-
papers, including The New York Times. The advertisements for
each program were similar in content to the one attached to
the complaint and, as required by the agreement, were
submitted to WGBH for approval to ensure the accuracy and
nonpartisan nature of the materials.
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ARGUMENT

The complaint appears to contend that the adver-
tisements placed by the NYSE Foundation violated the FECA's
prohibition of corporate contributions and expenditures,

2 U.S.C. § 441b, because they "promoted" the candidacies of
only certain selected candidates.

The short answer to this contention is that it is
clear from their text that the advertisements were placed for
the sole purpose of publicizing the series that was organized
by Harvard and produced and broadcast by WGBH.3}/ Because, as
shown below, the broadcasts of the candidate appearances
themselves are protected by the FECA's press exemption,

2 U.S.C. § 431(9)(B)(i), the actions undertaken by the NYSE

3/ Each advertisement identified the candidate who was the
subject of that particular week's program and invited the
public to tune in to the broadcast. For example, the text of
the advertisement attached to the complaint states in its
entirety:

THIS WEEK,
AMERICA DOES ITS HOMEWORK
FOR NEXT TERM.

~
o
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(o)

Candidates '88 with Marvin Kalb
A conversation with Pete du Pont.

3 5

This week, Marvin Kalb will host an
in-depth conversation with Pete du Pont,
Republican candidate for President. This
60-minute program will air on your local
PBS station.

Pete du Pont will have the
opportunity to share his views on a
number of topics and respond to questions
from a live audience.

Candidates '88 with Marvin Kalb is
made possible by a grant from The New
York Stock Exchange Foundation, Inc. as a
public education service.
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Poundation with regard to these broadcasts -- including the
placing of advertisements publicizing the broadcasts -- are
similarly protected. See FEC v. Phillips Publishing, Inc.,
517 F. Supp. 1308, 1313 (D.D.C. 198l1); Reader's Digest Ass’n,
Inc. v. FEC, 509 F. Supp. 1210, 1215 (S.D.N.Y. 1981).4/

The FECA generally prohibits any corporation from
making a contribution or expenditure in connection with any
presidential election, or in connection with any primary
election or political convention or caucus held to select
presidential candidates. 2 U.S.C. § 44lb(a). For purposes
of this provision, the term "contribution or expenditure"
includes any direct or indirect payment or gift of money or
services, or anything of value, to any candidate or campaign
committee in connection with any federal election. 2 U.S.C.
§ 441b(b)(2).

In its general definitions, the FECA defines
"contribution" to include any gift of money or anything of
value "made by any person for the purpose of influencing any
election for Federal office." 2 U.S.C. § 431(8)(A)(i). The
term "expenditure" is defined to include any payment or gift
of money or anything of value "made by any person for the
purpose of influencing any election for Federal office."

2 U.S.C. § 431(9)(A)(1).

The FECA, however, specifically excludes from the
definition of expenditure "any news story, commentary, oOr
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4/ Furthermore, none of the NYSE Foundation's actions
described above constitutes a "contribution" or "expenditure"
in the first instance, because, on their face, none of these
actions was undertaken "for the purpose of influencing" a
federal election within the meaning of the FECA. See FEC v.
Massachusetts Citizens for Life, Inc., 107 S. Ct. 616,
621-623 (1986). The NYSE Foundation's actions also do not
qualify as an "expenditure" for the additional reason that
they do not constitute express advocacy in support of, or in
opposition to, a particular candidate. Id. at 623. The
Commission need not consider these alternative grounds for
dismissal of the complaint, however, because it is readily
apparent that the NYSE Foundation's actions are fully
protected by the FECA's press exemption.
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editorial distributed through the facilities of any broad-
casting station, newspaper, magazine, or other periodical
publication, unless such facilities are owned or controlled
by any political party, political committee, or candidate."

2 U.S.C. § 431(9)(B)(i). The Commission's regulations
similarly exclude from the definitions of contribution and
expenditure "[a]lny cost incurred in covering or carrying® a
news story, commentary, or editorial by any broadcasting
station, magazine or other periodical publication. 11 C.F.R.
§§ 100.7(b)(2), 100.8(b)(2).

The activities of WGBH in producing the television
broadcasts, and of the NYSE Foundation in underwriting those
broadcasts, are fully covered by the press exemption. This
is confirmed by the Commission's recent decision in
A.O0. 1987-8, which involved facts quite similar to those in
this case.

In A.O. 1987-8, U.S. News & World Report ("U.S.
News") formulated a presidential candidate interview project.
As proposed, the project would involve separate interviews of
twelve major presidential candidates. The interviews would
be published in a magazine, broadcast on television, and
excerpted in book form. U.S. News entered into an agreement
with American International Group, Inc. ("AIG") under which
AIG would pay U.S. News a sponsorship fee of more than
$4 million and would be designated as the sole advertising
sponsor of the interview project. The agreement further
provided that AIG would have no control over any substantive
feature of the project, including the selection of the
candidates and the production and distribution of the
television broadcasts.
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Based on these facts, the Commission concluded that
magazine publication and television broadcast of the candidate
interviews by U.S. News would come squarely within the press
exemption of the FECA. The Commission further held that AIG's
sponsorship of the magazine and television interview series
"would not result in a contribution or expenditure in connec-
tion with a Federal election." A.0O. 1987-8, at p. 6. The
Commission explained that, because AIG would have no control
over any substantive aspect of the project, it viewed "AIG's
proposed sponsorship of the Magazine Series and the
Television Series as a permissible activity under the Act and
Commission regulations." Id. (footnote omitted).
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This case, like A.O. 1987-8, involves television
coverage of the appearances of certain presidential candi-
dates. Here, as in A.O. 1987-8, the appearances were
broadcast through facilities that are neither owned nor
controlled by any party or candidate. Thus, the activities
of WGBH in producing the broadcasts, like the proposed
activities of U.S. News, fit comfortably within the press
exemption of the FECA.

Moreover, the activities of the NYSE Foundation
here in support of WGBH's permissible activities are sub-
stantially similar to those of AIG in support of U.S. News'
proposed activities. The NYSE Foundation, like AIG,
exercised no control over, and had no involvement in, the
selection of candidates and the form or content of the
programs. By the same token, the NYSE Foundation, like AIG,
did not participate in the production of the programs and has
no ownership rights in the programs. It therefore follows
that the activities of the NYSE Foundation, like those of
AIG, are covered by the FECA's press exemption.5/
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S/ The only distinction between this case and A.O. 1987-8
is that AIG was to be involved as a commercial advertiser
with "no responsibility for the production costs," id. at 6,
whereas the NYSE Foundation, as "underwriter," provided funds
to cover WGBH's production costs. This distinction is
meaningless, however, because it arises only as a result of
the different methods of funding commercial and public
television. Moreover, the distinction cannot be regarded as
meaningful in this context because it would produce absurd
results. For example, it would mean that any company acting
as an underwriter of news broadcasts on public television
could be found to have violated the FECA whenever those
broadcasts happen to include segments concerning federal
elections. This outcome, which would raise serious First
Amendment questions, could not have been intended by Congress
and the Commission when they established the press exemption.

R 8
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CONCLUSION

The actions of the NYSE Foundation in connection
with the television coverage of the candidate appearances,
including the placement of advertisements publicizing the
broadcasts of those appearances, are fully protected by the
FECA's press exemption. Accordingly, the Commission should
find no reason to believe that the NYSE Foundation has
violated any provision of the FECA and it should dismiss the
complaint immediately insofar as it relates to the NYSE
Foundation.

Respectfully submitted,

Gregory M. Schmidt
Elliott Schulder

Attorneys for The
New York Stock Exchange
Foundation, Inc.

~N
Lo
c
o)
>
™~
o
A g
(e
los)
o

Attachments




":‘i"..é"’.,\?'"’"';.:“: T T O T TR - T

STATEMENT OF DESIGNATION OF COUNSEL

won | AJILT

NAME OF COUNSEL: K/ﬁc_ﬁ_}aﬂ‘z 52‘/1»1;&)‘: Esy

ADDRESS : ﬂ/a’f@ Co Vinglog + 604/n 7
/2ol /@rmfy/l/auztlgl/(./ N
e T
ZQ/%&TZL‘¢EGQH_J S . 2oy
202 ~WtGy = Gooon

The above-named individual is hereby designated as my

counsel and is authorized to receive any notifications and other

communications from the Commission and to act on my behalf before

-

the Commission, ::2 z ‘%A
L f”f—f’é‘)r

j e T fbank, ToTeel, fladles b

R L B Alformneus o Now Ynu Stck Acclange

Date Signature /'/7//’4«4’1»’41
7.

/

PONDENT'S NAME: /Véw %é/? f/»;u.’ 5;('/;’@;@ «gun éu‘;au/ /7("

ADDRESS: U W Staeer
ﬂ//' L7 '1/ \/ /.L)L,'L/)J 1

HOME PHONE:

BUSINESS PHONE:




O | SRR

FEDERAL ELECTION Corqasinn
FEDERAL ELECTION COMMISSION :

999 E Street, N.W. p .
Washington, D.C. 20463 B8 APR IS PHI2: 02

FIRST GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT l’lilﬂg""lE

MUR 2567

DATE COMPLAINT RECEIVED BY OGC
12/28/88

DATE OF NOTIFICATION TO
RESPONDENTS 1/11/88

STAFF MEMBER Marinelli

COMPLAINANT: Edward S. Kanbar

RESPONDENTS: Gannett Company
National Broadcasting Company,
New York Stock Exchange Foundation
Public Broadcasting Service

9

431(2)
431(8) (A) (i)
431(9) (A) (1)
431(9) (B) (i)
441b
100.7(b) (2)
100.7(b) (21)
100.8(b) (23)
A ER 110.13

B2 ol 114.4(e)
Advisory Opinion 1982-44
Advisory Opinion 1986-37
Advisory Opinion 1987-8

RELEVANT STATUTES: 2
2

2

2

2

11

11

11

09

3

W) ) ) ) W) D) W) W

INTERNAL REPORTS
CHECKED: None

)
~

(2
T
©
o
o

FEDERAL AGENCIES
CHECKED: None

I. GENERATION OF MATTER

On December 8, 1987, Edward S. Kanbar filed a complaint
alleging that the four respondents were in violation of the
Federal Election Campaign Act, as amended (the "Act"), by the
advertising, staging or sponsoring of events related to the 1988

Presidential campaign.
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The respondents named are the Gannett Company ("Gannett®), a
for-profit corporation engaged in newspaper publication,
broadcasting, and outdoor advertising and the owner of the Des

Moines Register; the National Broadcasting Company ("NBC"), a

for-profit national network broadcasting corporation; the Public

Broadcasting Service ("PBS"), a non-profit membership corporation
engaged in the distribution of television programming for its
members; and the New York Stock Exchange Foundation (the "NYSE
Foundation"), a non-profit corporation, tax-exempt under
26 U.S.C. § 501(c) (3) and involved in educational and charitable
funding. Gannett, PBS and the NYSE Foundation have responded to
the complaint.
II. PACTUAL AND LEGAL ANALYSIS

A. The Allegations

The complainant alleges that by sponsoring or staging the
debates, three of the respondents were making corporate
contributions or expenditures prohibited by 2 U.S.C. § 441b. The
debates are listed as "America's Future: A Presidential Debate,"
the December 1, 1987 debate among major party candidates staged
and broadcasted by NBC; a debate scheduled by the Des Moines
Register for Republican and Democratic presidential candidates;
and certain unspecified debates the complaint alleges were
sponsored by PBS.

The complainant alleges that the debates did not merit the
exemption from the definition of contribution and expenditure

provided by 11 C.F.R. §§ 100.7(b) (21) and 100.8(b) (23). Section
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110.13(b) requires that the debates be nonpartisan. The
complainant alleges these debates were partisan because they
failed to invite all individuals seeking the Presidency who
qualified as candidates under the Act.l/ Of necessity,
complainant argues, this supported the candidacies of those
invited over those left out.

Besides the debates, the complainant alleges that the
advertisement surrounding an interview series also violated
2 U.S.C. § 441b. The interview series was entitled "Candidates
88 with Marvin Kalb." The advertisements promoting the event
were funded, according to the advertisement sample provided in

the complaint, by the NYSE Foundation.

1/ There are different definitions of candidate in Federal
election campaign law. In the Federal Election Campaign Act of
1971, as amended (the "Act"), the provisions regarding the
reporting and spending requirements applicable to Federal
elections generally, a person becomes a candidate if that
individual or one authorized to act on his behalf receives more
than $5,000 in contributions or makes more than $5,000 in
expenditures for the Federal election. See 2 U.S.C. § 431(2).

An individual is a presidential primary candidate for
purposes of the Presidential Primary Matching Payment account if
under state law he has qualified for the presidential nomination
in a state primary election and he or an authorized person
receives contributions or incurs expenses for that primary. See
26 U.S.C. § 9032(2). However, to actually qualify for the
matching funds the Presidential primary candidate must file a
certification letter and verify the receipt of more than $5,000
in contrib